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          1  SANITATION AND SOLID WASTE MANAGEMENT

          2                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON YASSKY:  My name

          3  is David Yassky.  I am subbing today for Chair

          4  McMahon who was unavoidably detained and may or may

          5  not join us, depending on how fast that resolves

          6  itself, so I am sitting in for him today.

          7                 Today the Committee on Sanitation and

          8  Solid Waste Management will consider three intros.

          9  that I believe would greatly improve the quality of

         10  life for New Yorkers.

         11                 Intro. No. 350, introduced by Council

         12  Member Simcha Felder, proposes to extend the

         13  Department of Sanitation's routing system.

         14  Currently businesses are required to maintain a

         15  standard of cleanliness in front of their

         16  establishments only during certain hours of the day.

         17  In other words, they're not responsible for

         18  patrolling 24 hours a day the sidewalks.  Rather,

         19  the department presumes that if it's clean at

         20  certain specified times, then they're doing a good

         21  enough job.  It gives people some certainty and

         22  enables them to conduct their daily lives without

         23  having to be indentured servants of New York City. This

         24  bill would amend the law to extend that same system

         25  to residences. Currently homeowners can be ticketed
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          2  for litter at any time of the day.

          3                 Intro. No. 480, the second bill on

          4  today's agenda, introduced by myself along with

          5  several of my colleagues, would prohibit the

          6  unwanted solicitation or the unwanted placement of

          7  materials such as menus, fliers and cards on the

          8  outside of a building, on a stoop or in someone's

          9  door if the owner or manager of the building places

         10  a special receptacle for that kind of material. In

         11  other words, right now many of us are subjected to

         12  daily deluges of menus, fliers, circulars,

         13  advertisements on our stoop that blow then onto the

         14  sidewalk and into the street and create a litter

         15  problem.  The idea is that if somebody doesn't want

         16  that sort of junk mail, they can put a junk pail on

         17  the stoop of their building and then anything that's

         18  not put inside that would be litter and would be

         19  subject to ticketing.

         20                 Intro. No. 541, ticketing by the

         21  person who placed it there.  In other words, the

         22  company that is in fact littering.  Because that's

         23  really what it is.

         24                 The third bill on the agenda is

         25  Intro. 541, introduced by Council Members Brewer and

                                                            5

          1  SANITATION AND SOLID WASTE MANAGEMENT

          2  Avella, would make it illegal to place stickers on

          3  private property.  The City Administrative Code

          4  already prohibits stickers on any public area,

          5  structure or building but does not cover placement

          6  of stickers on private property.  Council members

          7  have received numerous complaints from building

          8  owners of private businesses, everything from 24-

          9  hour locksmiths to other types of business placing

         10  advertising stickers on their doors, entranceways,

         11  storefronts and windows without permission.  This

         12  bill would provide a means for those advertisers to

         13  be ticketed and fined.

         14                 Before hearing from the witnesses,

         15  let me introduce my colleagues that are here:

         16  Council Member Jose Serrano from the Bronx, Council

         17  Member Michael Nelson from Brooklyn, Council Member

         18  Weprin from Queens on the far right and the author

         19  of Intro. 350, as I've already described, Council

         20  Member Simcha Felder.

         21                 Are there any opening statements

         22  before we hear from the witnesses?  Okay.  Hearing

         23  none, our first panel of witnesses includes -- we

         24  first have the representative from the Department of

         25  Sanitation.  I know that we are joined by at least
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          2  the Chief of the Bureau of Cleaning and Collections,

          3  Anthony -- I'm sorry --

          4                 MR. ETERGINEOSO:  Etergineoso.

          5                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON YASSKY:  Thank

          6  you, sir.

          7  Would you please, at the outset of your testimony,

          8  identify those of your colleagues that are here with

          9  you.  I know that we have a written statement that

         10  will be made part of the record and I know we have a

         11  great many private citizens that are interested in

         12  being heard today and that we will be hearing from

         13  today.  So in the interest of brevity, I'm going to

         14  ask all the witnesses to restrict their comments,

         15  their spoken comments, to two minutes.  The written

         16  statements will all be made part of the record and

         17  then we will have time to hear from everybody and

         18  also to have dialogue.  Thank you very much.  Please

         19  begin.

         20                 MR. ETERGINEOSO:  Good afternoon,

         21  Subchairman Yassky and members of the Committee on

         22  Sanitation and Solid Waste Management, I'm Anthony

         23  Etergineoso, Director of the Bureau of Cleaning and

         24  Collections for the New York City Department of

         25  Sanitation.  I am here this afternoon with, to my
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          2  right, Arty Sullivan, Chief of Cleaning Operations

          3  for the department; to my left, Todd Kuzmitz,

          4  Director of Enforcement for the department and to my

          5  extreme left Mike Burke, Deputy Director of

          6  Enforcement, to discuss three bills under

          7  consideration by the committee that I will address

          8  separately.

          9                 The first bill, Intro. No. 350,

         10  proposes to expand the current enforcement routing

         11  system to all premises citywide.  Under the current

         12  routing system sanitation enforcement agents patrol

         13  commercial street blocks during two predetermined

         14  one- hour periods during the day and issue summonses

         15  to commercial establishments for failing to keep

         16  clean the sidewalk area around their premises and

         17  the area extending 18" from the curb in front of

         18  their store into the street.  The department

         19  implemented this enforcement routing program to

         20  benefit merchants occupying commercial buildings by

         21  restricting the hours during which merchants would

         22  be held accountable for dirty sidewalks and 18"

         23  infractions.  Since its inception in 1990, business

         24  communities across the city have strongly supported

         25  enforcement routing and the program has been largely
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          2  successful.

          3                 The department supports initiatives

          4  that support the cleanliness of sidewalks in public

          5  areas, however, the department opposes expanding

          6  enforcement routing to residential premises.  It

          7  would place an unfair burden on property owners,

          8  especially those residing in one, two and three-

          9  family homes whose occupants work during regular

         10  business hours and are unable to monitor their

         11  property during the daytime when residential

         12  enforcement routing would occur.

         13                 In addition, the New York City

         14  Environmental Control Board has consistently held

         15  that residential building owners must make a

         16  reasonable effort to keep their property free from

         17  debris.  By including residential premises in the

         18  routing system, the reasonable efforts standard

         19  would no longer be a defense to residential building

         20  owners.  Instead, they would be held strictly liable

         21  for failing to ensure that the sidewalk and the curb

         22  area around their homes are litter free during the

         23  designated routing hours even if they are not at

         24  home.

         25                 For these reasons we believe Intro.
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          2  350 is impractical and would impose an enormous

          3  burden on homeowners.

          4                 The second bill, Intro. 480, would

          5  prohibit anyone from placing unsolicited advertising

          6  material inside or outside of the building if the

          7  building owner or manager has provided a separate

          8  receptacle for receiving the advertisements.  If the

          9  building owner or manager opts to provide a separate

         10  receptacle, it must be placed within 15 feet of the

         11  entrance if located in the lobby or within 5 feet

         12  outside the main entrance to the premises.  The

         13  building owner or manager would also have to place a

         14  conspicuous sign notifying persons that all

         15  unsolicited materials must be deposited into the

         16  receptacle or the advertiser will be subject to a

         17  minimum fine of $100.

         18                 The department has previously

         19  appeared before the City Council on many occasions

         20  to address various bills relating to the

         21  distribution of unsolicited materials.  This subject

         22  raises concerns from both a litter control and a

         23  public safety perspective.

         24                 I am not here this afternoon to

         25  address the constitutional implications of Intro.
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          2  480, I will leave that issue for discussion between

          3  the Council and Administration legal staff.

          4  Instead, I wish to address the important quality of

          5  life issues addressed with the unregulated

          6  distribution and unsolicited advertisements and the

          7  department's support of any feasible and legally-

          8  sound measures that will enhance public safety and

          9  the department's littering enforcement efforts.

         10                 Unsolicited advertisements that are

         11  deposited on doorsteps or affixed to fences or other

         12  areas of private property are often blown away by

         13  the wind and causes litter to accumulate upon the

         14  streets and sidewalks.  In addition, when deposited

         15  in front of a private home and foyer entrances of

         16  apartment buildings, unsolicited printed material

         17  accumulated in sufficient quantities can jeopardize

         18  the safety of the occupants and their guests.  The

         19  material when wet or covered with snow and ice may

         20  cause a person to slip or fall.  A similar slip or

         21  fall may occur when printed matter is placed on

         22  smooth interior floors of apartment buildings.  They

         23  create a nuisance for unwilling recipients who must

         24  ultimately collect and dispose of them.

         25                 Last, the accumulation of unwanted
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          2  printed materials placed in front of residence may

          3  invite burglaries by suggesting to perpetrators that

          4  the dwelling is unattended or unoccupied.

          5                 The last bill, Intro. No. 541,

          6  expands the act of defacement under Section 10- 117

          7  of the New York City Administrative Code to include

          8  affixing, attaching or placing a sticker or decal on

          9  any public or private building or structure. Intro.

         10  541 also adds a rebuttable presumption that the

         11  person whose name, telephone number or other

         12  identifying information appears on any sticker or

         13  decal is responsible for the violation and hold

         14  telephone answering service companies responsible

         15  for the violation in instances when the sticker or

         16  decal contains no identifying information.  It also

         17  empowers the Sanitation Commissioner to subpoena

         18  telephone company records to ascertain the identity

         19  of the individual or business responsible for the

         20  defacement.

         21                 Recently the department has

         22  experienced an increase in complaints from elected

         23  officials and the public concerning persons placing

         24  stickers or decals on private property.  Although

         25  Local Law 2 of 2003 expanded the act of illegal
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          2  posting to include stickers under New York City's

          3  Postal Law, Local Law 2 does not apply to stickers

          4  placed on private property.  The creation of a

          5  separate civil offense for the placement of stickers

          6  or decals on all properties would deter individuals

          7  from engaging in this unlawful act and preserve the

          8  quality of life in communities by protecting private

          9  and public buildings from defacement.

         10                 To strengthen the bill, the

         11  department recommends that Intro. 541 include a

         12  separate provision that designates each unlawful

         13  placement of a sticker or decal as a separate

         14  offense and imposes a duty on the responsible party

         15  to provide for the clean up of the building or

         16  structure within a certain period of time or be

         17  subject to the imposition of additional fines.

         18                 The department continues to support

         19  measures that will enhance the city's ability to

         20  enforce against those individuals responsible for

         21  defacing properties across the city and improve the

         22  quality of life in many communities that have been

         23  negatively impacted by the posting of stickers and

         24  decals.

         25                 I would be happy to answer any of
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          2  your questions.

          3                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON YASSKY:  Thank

          4  you, Chief. I just have a couple of quick questions

          5  and then I'm sure my colleagues do.

          6                 On Intro. 480, the litter in front of

          7  people's homes bill, it's not clear to me from your

          8  statement whether the administration supports or

          9  opposes this bill.

         10                 MR. ETERGINEOSO:  We support the

         11  bill.  I mean I'd have some questions on it, but we

         12  do support it.

         13  Anything that gives us power to keep the city clean

         14  we support.

         15                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON YASSKY:  Okay.

         16  Terrific. And then my only other question is on the

         17  sticker law, the State Legislature, as you know,

         18  recently amended its own littering statutes so that

         19  people who place unwanted advertisements on cars,

         20  that the department can make a presumption that the

         21  business that is advertised on that flier, if

         22  somebody puts a sticker for Yassky's Painting

         23  Service under the windshield of every car in the

         24  block, that you can then penalize Yassky's Painting

         25  Service for littering.  How's that worked so far?
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          2                 MR. ETERGINEOSO:  Well, I haven't any

          3  numbers on that, how it works, and I believe it's a

          4  summons for each and every flier so it's not just

          5  one, it's similar to the posting.

          6                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON YASSKY:  Do you

          7  feel that's been useful to you?

          8                 MR. ETERGINEOSO:  Of course.  That's

          9  been a continuing problem and I think it's just a

         10  logical step, going from the posting to the fliers

         11  on the cars and now to the fliers on residences.

         12                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON YASSKY:  Thank you

         13  very much.  Council Member Felder.  I want to say I

         14  strongly support also Intro. 350 as well.  I will

         15  defer my questions on that until -- I want to give

         16  Council Member Felder a chance to address it.  If

         17  there's anything left over I may resume questioning.

         18    Thank you.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER FELDER:  In your

         20  testimony you state that the department supports

         21  initiatives to promote cleanliness and that the

         22  reason that you oppose the routing is that it would

         23  place an unfair burden on property owners,

         24  especially of one, two and three- family homes.  And

         25  then you continue in your testimony stating that it
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          2  would not -- New York City ECB has consistently held

          3  that residential building owners must make a

          4  reasonable effort to keep their property free from

          5  debris.  Right now, when are you allowed to ticket

          6  homeowners?

          7                 MR. ETERGINEOSO:  Right now our

          8  policy is that we do not summons one and two

          9  families and multiple six units and below for dirty

         10  sidewalks or 18" law unless we're directed there by

         11  complaints and in fact there is a bad condition.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER FELDER:  Okay.  But

         13  under the law, when are you allowed to ticket

         14  homeowners?

         15                 MR. ETERGINEOSO:  I believe the

         16  homeowner's responsible to keep their area clean and

         17  technically if we come across a summons, we can

         18  issue it.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER FELDER:  It's a very

         20  specific question.  What time are you allowed to

         21  issue summonses?

         22                 MR. ETERGINEOSO:  We do not issue

         23  summonses between 9 p.m. And 9 a.m.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER FELDER:  Okay.  So

         25  what time are you allowed to issue summonses?
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          2                 MR. ETERGINEOSO:  Any time between 9

          3  a.m. And 9 p.m.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER FELDER:  That's all I

          5  want to know.  That means all day long in essence

          6  you can ticket homeowners?

          7                 MR. ETERGINEOSO:  Technically, yes.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER FELDER:  That is, to

          9  me that is not an enormous burden on homeowners.

         10  I'm saying that in jest.  But having to give them a

         11  certain time where we would know that if it's clean

         12  during that time there's a presumption it's clean

         13  the rest of the day according to your testimony that

         14  is an enormous burden on homeowners.  I don't

         15  understand the logic.  If you can explain that to

         16  me.

         17                 MR. ETERGINEOSO:  We feel that people

         18  go to work and if they're responsible to clean

         19  between 10 a.m. And 11 in the morning and two and

         20  three in the afternoon and they're out working,

         21  there's no way that they can do this cleaning.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER FELDER:  Right.  But,

         23  in other words, if they can be ticketed all day,

         24  then it's okay.

         25                 MR. ETERGINEOSO:  Our policy is not
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          2  to be ticketed.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER FELDER:  I'm not

          4  interested really in what the policy is.  I'm being

          5  frank about that because a policy means that today

          6  that may be the policy and tomorrow it may not be.

          7  Under the law you stated that you're allowed to

          8  ticket between 9 a.m. And 9 p.m., which means that

          9  in theory, and we have proof over time, maybe not

         10  yesterday or the last month or two, that tickets

         11  have been issued.  In fact, I have right in front of

         12  me.  I have copies from my colleagues here and I'd

         13  be happy to give you -- if you can give the -- you

         14  can share them.  I have copies here of tickets that

         15  have been issued at 7:10 a.m., at 9:12 a.m., at 9:35

         16  a.m., at 10:31 a.m., at 10:58 a.m., at 11:46 a.m.,

         17  at 12:54 p.m., 2:32 p.m. and 4:04 p.m.  If I had

         18  enough resources I could have brought you tickets

         19  for every minute of the day, right?

         20                 MR. ETERGINEOSO:  Yes, you may, and

         21  again, we -- by law we can issue the summons 24

         22  hours a day.  It's our policy not to.  And as I said

         23  before, we do issue summonses if we're responding to

         24  a complaint and the complaint does in fact exist.

         25  So I don't know what those individual summonses
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          2  relate to.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER FELDER:  First of all,

          4  I beg to differ with you about your response to

          5  complaints about that's when you issue the

          6  summonses.  Right now at this time you admit that

          7  the department has the authority to issue tickets at

          8  any time during the day and I believe those tickets

          9  are issued whether there's a complaint or whether

         10  there's not a complaint.  That's my belief.

         11                 I have in front of me two tickets in

         12  fact that were issued to property owners and it just

         13  happens to be that one of the property owners -- I'm

         14  going to go like a little wacky here because I don't

         15  have -- I'm really upset about this.  Two of the

         16  tickets were issued to Ida Felder. Ida Felder

         17  happens to be my mother who's in her late 80s. The

         18  tickets that are issued here, 4903 18th Avenue, the

         19  address doesn't even exist.  There is no such

         20  address as 4903.  She was issued tickets for

         21  sidewalk obstructions, not even for a question of

         22  cleanliness, for displaying racks of toys in front

         23  of her house.  My mother doesn't own a toy store.

         24  There's a place across the street that has toys and

         25  that's a hundred dollar fine, that's zero
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          2  visibility, and that's for a homeowner.  So although

          3  you may say that you have policies about not issuing

          4  tickets, I have two of them in fact.  I'll be happy

          5  to shown to you, they're in your packet.

          6                 I don't see how it's less of a burden

          7  for homeowners when you were able to ticket them all

          8  day long rather than having routing hours.  I am,

          9  for all my colleagues, I'm not in favor of having

         10  two separate times of the day for routing hours for

         11  homeowners.  There's absolutely not reason that the

         12  homeowner should be expected two times a day to

         13  sweep or make sure that it's clean.  If at one point

         14  during the day and it would be one that we'd have to

         15  work out as one that's reasonable, maybe it has to

         16  be eight in the morning.  I don't know what it is.

         17  Maybe it's nine in the morning, from nine to ten,

         18  that somebody knows that before they go to work they

         19  have to keep the place clean and then there would be

         20  an assumption that it's clean the rest of the day.

         21                 I think that it's about time that we

         22  ask homeowners what's a burden on them.  I haven't

         23  heard one homeowner, or I don't think I will hear

         24  any homeowner say that they would agree with it.

         25  No, that's a generalization, okay?  I take that

                                                            20

          1  SANITATION AND SOLID WASTE MANAGEMENT

          2  back.  There may be some people in the city that

          3  agree with you.  Overwhelmingly I believe that we

          4  should leave it up to the people in the city and I

          5  think that the majority of the population would

          6  appreciate having one time during the time, knowing

          7  that they can keep the place clean and assume that

          8  it's clean the rest of the day. I don't see a

          9  problem with that.  Let the people decide.

         10                 I have a lot of questions but I know

         11  my colleagues have questions.  I just want to ask

         12  two or three others and then I'll save mine for

         13  after that.

         14                 How many tickets, how many sanitation

         15  tickets does the Department of Sanitation issue to

         16  homeowners annually?

         17                 MR. ETERGINEOSO:  I don't have that

         18  number but I'm sure I can get it for you.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER FELDER:  I'd like to

         20  know that.  I'd like to know how many sanitation

         21  tickets are issued annually to homeowners.  I'd like

         22  to know how many tickets -- how many -- I'd like to

         23  know on what basis the number of tickets come into

         24  play with the agents.  I wanted to clarify that.

         25  I'd like to know whether the number of tickets
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          2  issued by agents, there are a specific number of

          3  tickets that are supposed to be issued by sanitation

          4  agents. That's called a quota.  I want to know

          5  whether there's a quota for sanitation ticket

          6  agents.

          7                 MR. ETERGINEOSO:  There's no quota.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER FELDER:  They're not

          9  supposed to issue any number of tickets?

         10                 MR. ETERGINEOSO:  They issue the

         11  tickets when they come across a summons.  It's

         12  there, they issue the summons.  That's what they're

         13  supposed to do --

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER FELDER:  Good.

         15                 MR. ETERGINEOSO:  -- For the period

         16  in which they're working.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER FELDER:  So in other

         18  words, an agent, for example, that issued no

         19  tickets, I'm taking it to the extreme, during the

         20  year would get an evaluation that would be just as

         21  good as somebody who issued a thousand tickets?

         22                 MR. ETERGINEOSO:  If I had an agent

         23  that produced nothing, I would have my enforcement

         24  people have a sergeant work with that agent to see

         25  if that agent is capable of identifying what a
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          2  summons is and what a summons isn't.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER FELDER:  Excellent.

          4  So, for example, what if you had an agent that

          5  issued 500 summonses and you had another agent that

          6  issued a thousand summonses, it would make no

          7  difference?

          8                 MR. ETERGINEOSO:  It makes no

          9  difference.  It depends on where they're working.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER FELDER:  Okay.  How do

         11  you decide, my last question for now, how do you

         12  decide where your agents go out, at what

         13  neighborhoods they're assigned to?

         14                 MR. ETERGINEOSO:  Well, right now

         15  we're focusing on, and I'm sure you know about

         16  Operation Nice, we're focusing on districts that are

         17  receiving poor score card ratings.  So we're putting

         18  additional agents in those areas to try to increase

         19  the rating.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER FELDER:  Okay.  And

         21  those ratings, I'm sorry, this is critical, when you

         22  say poor score card ratings, how are those ratings

         23  established?

         24                 MR. ETERGINEOSO:  That's by the

         25  Mayor's Operations Office.  They have their
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          2  representative sample of block faces throughout the

          3  district, throughout the section, and they rate

          4  them.  We have nothing to do with the rating.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER FELDER:  No problem.

          6  Is it true that the same blocks have been rated

          7  consistently for the last ten years, that they rate

          8  the same areas over and over again?

          9                 MR. ETERGINEOSO:  As far as I know,

         10  that is true, and we have no knowledge of those

         11  blocks.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER FELDER:  Would you

         13  suggest -- I'll continue on this.  Just for the

         14  record, Chairman, I think that that policy of rating

         15  the same blocks over and over again is bizarre

         16  because in theory they could be rating an area near

         17  a train station that's always filthy and they go

         18  back to that stop over and over and over again,

         19  which means the same neighborhood gets the same

         20  rating every time. But I think my colleagues have

         21  more questions on this.

         22                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON YASSKY:  Council

         23  Member Nelson.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER NELSON:  Thank you,

         25  Mr. Chair. Chief Etergineoso, right, and company?
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          2                 We all want clean streets.  There's

          3  no doubt about that, but I think part of the essence

          4  of this is the fairness of our laws.  I think it's

          5  the heart of the matter, as a matter of fact,

          6  intentionally or perhaps not intentionally, there

          7  seems to be, at least my constituents feel it's an

          8  attack on middle class homeowners to help the city

          9  in its crisis.  Now, I don't agree per se with that

         10  but overzealousness perhaps may be occurring and our

         11  job is to protect all the citizenry including the

         12  middle class.

         13                 I just want to say, too, if somebody

         14  walks by, a slob, and drops off a Dunkin Donuts

         15  container or bag, cup, whatever it is, the homeowner

         16  is liable 12 hours a day. So what we're trying to

         17  do, I guess, is to corral this into a certain time

         18  frame.  The person's at work and suddenly this slob

         19  walks by, they're still open for the ticket, as

         20  unfair as that is.  I believe it is.  I would rather

         21  see the enforcement take place perhaps in the

         22  evening hours only when people have a chance to get

         23  home unless they're like Council members, they may

         24  not get hom until about 11 or 12:00 at night, but

         25  most people do get home about six, seven, 8:00 and
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          2  they have a fighting chance.

          3                 Basically I just wanted to pose that.

          4    It's not actually in a question form but in a

          5  statement form. Would you agree there might be an

          6  element of unfairness,

          7  in question form, if the ticket's being allowed 9

          8  a.m. To

          9  9 p.m.?

         10                 MR. ETERGINEOSO:  What we try to do,

         11  and I can have Enforcement talk to this, is we

         12  stress to our agents and our san cops to always use

         13  discretion.  I don't think that one piece of litter

         14  is going to warrant a summons and I don't think we

         15  issue summonses for one piece of litter.

         16                 Can you talk to that a bit, Mike?

         17  Michael Burke.

         18                 MR. BURKE:  Interested about

         19  residential, six family and under?

         20                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON YASSKY:  Could you

         21  just identify yourself for the record, please.

         22                 MR. BURKE:  My name is Michael Burke

         23  and I'm Deputy Director of Sanitation Enforcement.

         24                 When the agent or the sanitation

         25  police officer goes to enforce, let's say he's
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          2  looking for 18" into the street, he -- if it's a

          3  windy day like yesterday, I mean the cop or the

          4  agent will use their discretion.  We're looking for

          5  matted pieces of paper, we're looking at a premises

          6  or an individual who potentially hasn't done

          7  anything in front of their building in the last two

          8  to three days.  So we do not train our personnel to

          9  be hard- handed, we train them to use discretion and

         10  we do like them to look for certain conditions:

         11  Matted paper, evidence that no one really maybe were

         12  there yesterday.  You came back today, if it's a

         13  litter situation, it's more than likely it will be

         14  there again, and we look for something where someone

         15  really didn't try to address the situation.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER NELSON:  I would say

         17  that you have been quite fair to our calls, you,

         18  yourself, as has almost every sanitation official

         19  that my office has called.

         20  There are no doubt, like there is in every

         21  organization, there's got to be some cowboys, but I

         22  think Simcha might address that issue, if I may say

         23  that.  He has some stuff that -- it seems to be some

         24  hits overall.  I have led some charges in commercial

         25  areas and I appreciate when you and your forces do
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          2  crack down on store owners, you know, commercial

          3  areas that absolutely flaunt the law and I

          4  appreciate that.  But I also have pleaded with them

          5  if a store owner does have a piece of paper in front

          6  of their store and they're behind the register

          7  making a sale and generally the store, as you

          8  alluded to, has not been a problem in the city, not

          9  also to act the store.  As much as store owners

         10  might not particularly care for me, I want fairness

         11  with them, too.  But I appreciate what you said just

         12  now and I only hope that all the agents do have this

         13  in their code, their personal code.

         14                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON YASSKY:  Council

         15  Member Weprin.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER WEPRIN:  Yes,

         17  Director.  I sponsored a bill to change the sign law

         18  in the city and there's currently a moratorium going

         19  on with these so- called illegal signs or formerly

         20  illegal signs before we passed the moratorium, you

         21  know, having too many words on a sign and having

         22  lettering more than 12".  When merchants in my area

         23  got summonses, your department said the same thing

         24  you just testified today that you strictly act on

         25  complaints.  It's complaint driven.  But the problem
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          2  with that is, and I'm going to pose a question

          3  because I assume it's the same for the sanitation

          4  cleanliness violations, when you get these

          5  complaints, they're anonymous, are they not?

          6                 MR. ETERGINEOSO:  Some are anonymous.

          7  They're basically 311 complaints that we're dealing

          8  with now, but if somebody --

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER WEPRIN:  But if

         10  somebody was making an anonymous --

         11                 MR. BURKE:  You're talking about

         12  residentials when we deal with the complaints?

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER WEPRIN:  The tickets

         14  you just said that you give based on complaints,

         15  they're complaint driven.

         16                 MR. ETERGINEOSO:  Right, they're

         17  complaint driven in the residential areas.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER WEPRIN:  Is someone

         19  required to give you their name and address before

         20  you act on a complaint?

         21                 MR. ETERGINEOSO:  No.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER WEPRIN:  So they could

         23  be anonymous?

         24                 MR. BURKE:  They could be anonymous.

         25  Not all of them are anonymous.

                                                            29

          1  SANITATION AND SOLID WASTE MANAGEMENT

          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER WEPRIN:  The problem

          3  with that is you're inviting a situation if you're

          4  only acting on complaints.  You're inviting a

          5  potential situation where you have disputes among

          6  neighbors and particularly in a case when someone

          7  gets repeated violations for the same property

          8  because you have to respond to a complaint is what

          9  you're telling me, that's your policy, or by law you

         10  respond to complaints.

         11                 So what you're doing is by allowing

         12  this anonymous system to take place with complaints

         13  and people responding to complaints, you're inviting

         14  disputes among neighbors.  If someone wants to keep

         15  complaining about a particular neighbor, and

         16  especially in a situation where it's something

         17  beyond their control, where the wind is blowing or

         18  there's something going on, how do you get around

         19  that situation?

         20                 MR. ETERGINEOSO:  By the time it

         21  takes us to respond, it's two or three days later.

         22  So if we arrive at a location --

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER WEPRIN:  Even if it's

         24  a dangerous situation?  If somebody reports a

         25  dangerous situation --
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          2                 MR. ETERGINEOSO:  Dangerous

          3  situations always take priority.  But in a general

          4  complaint of a dirty area, by the time we get it in

          5  Enforcement, by the time they download it, they send

          6  it out for their locations and then the enforcement

          7  agents get out there and check, that could be a day

          8  or two later.  So then, if that condition does exist

          9  or condition matted like Deputy Direct Mike Burke

         10  said, if that condition exists a few days after the

         11  initial call, then to us it's a valid summons.  The

         12  condition is there when we got there and we're

         13  responding to a complaint that happened a couple of

         14  days earlier.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER WEPRIN:  What's your

         16  policy on repeated tickets on the same day?  Do you

         17  have a policy on that?

         18                 MR. ETERGINEOSO:  We only issue one.

         19  Our policy is for one summons.  Even if there's

         20  three or four summonses at one location, one

         21  summons.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER WEPRIN:  Okay.  Then

         23  how do you explain a situation that Council Member

         24  Felder pointed out where one individual homeowner

         25  got four or five summonses within minutes or hours
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          2  of each other in one given day?

          3                 MR. ETERGINEOSO:  I don't know who

          4  those people are that issued those summonses.  It

          5  could have been an Enforcement cop, maybe a

          6  supervisor came by and issued a different summons at

          7  that location.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER WEPRIN:  But by law,

          9  though, you're entitled to issue multiple summonses.

         10    You're telling me it's your policy but it's not

         11  law, right?  I mean someone legal can issue --

         12                 MR. ETERGINEOSO:  It's our policy.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER WEPRIN:  But it's not

         14  law. The reason I'm mentioning it is if someone

         15  tries to contest these multiple tickets within hours

         16  of each other at a local administrative law judge,

         17  the administrative law judge will say, "Well, it

         18  doesn't matter what the policy is, it's the law, so

         19  I have to comply with the law."  And that's why the

         20  law probably should be changed and maybe we should

         21  actually do a separate bill limiting some of this to

         22  one day because I think that's another area, because

         23  somebody shouldn't be able to get multiple summonses

         24  even though it's not the policy but clearly it's the

         25  law.  And if somebody tried to contest those
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          2  tickets, they would lose because the Judge would

          3  say, "Well, it was still in violation."  Similar to

          4  a parking situation, because I know of situations

          5  where someone will park illegally and end up with

          6  three or four summonses within a short period of

          7  time and when they try to contest it before the

          8  Parking Violation Bureau, the response is, "Well, I

          9  know it doesn't seem fair, they should have used

         10  discretion, but they're legal."  Because while

         11  you're there you can keep getting summonses every

         12  second legally, even though it doesn't usually

         13  happen.

         14                 I think maybe we should, Council

         15  Member Felder, either look to do another bill or add

         16  a bill limiting the amount of summonses because that

         17  seems to be another issue.

         18                 The other thing that disturbs me is

         19  you said

         20  that legally you can ticket 24 hours a day but it's

         21  your policy to only ticket between 9 a.m. And 9

         22  p.m., is that correct?

         23                 MR. ETERGINEOSO:  Yes.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER WEPRIN:  And who made

         25  that policy and how long has that policy been in
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          2  effect?

          3                 MR. ETERGINEOSO:  We have an

          4  operations order, rescinds Operations Order 83- 12

          5  from 1983, and this order went out August of 2002.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER WEPRIN:  So it's been

          7  your policy since August 2002?  Can we get a copy of

          8  that?

          9                 MR. ETERGINEOSO:  Yes, we'll provide

         10  you a copy.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER WEPRIN:  Okay.  So you

         12  would have no objection to us putting your policy

         13  into law, right, if we wanted to legislate it to

         14  make sure that it was actually the case or the

         15  policy would continue?  You wouldn't object to that

         16  then?  Okay.  Thank you.  No further questions.

         17                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON YASSKY:  Thank

         18  you.  I know that Council Members Felder and Nelson

         19  have follow- ups. I do as well.

         20                 On this issue of the 9 p.m. To 9 a.m.

         21  Period when it's your policy not to issue summonses,

         22  why did you put that policy into effect?

         23                 MR. ETERGINEOSO:  I guess common

         24  sense says nobody wants to be bothered at 9 p.m.

         25  People have to go to sleep, they have to go to work.
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          2    I wouldn't want to be bothered.  It's not fair to

          3  expect somebody to be monitoring to see if there's

          4  litter at three in the morning and go out and check.

          5                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON YASSKY:  Wouldn't

          6  the same logic be true for say 1 p.m. For a

          7  homeowner who works during the day?  Wouldn't the

          8  same logic say that it's really not fair to expect

          9  the homeowner to monitor their sidewalk at 1:00 in

         10  the afternoon on a work day?  Maybe 8:00 in the

         11  morning is fair but it's not fair --

         12                 MR. ETERGINEOSO:  Why is 8:00 in the

         13  morning fair for somebody that goes to work at 6:00

         14  in the morning?

         15                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON YASSKY:  All

         16  right.  But let's just -- somebody who works nine to

         17  five, is it fair to say they're responsible for what

         18  the place looks like at 1 p.m.?

         19                 MR. ETERGINEOSO:  No, I don't think

         20  so.

         21                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON YASSKY:  Okay.  I

         22  mean I don't either.

         23                 MR. ETERGINEOSO:  I mean a lot of

         24  things can happen when someone is away from their

         25  house.
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          2                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON YASSKY:  I agree

          3  with you and I appreciate your engaging in dialogue.

          4    I think that's the impetus behind what Council

          5  Member Felder is seeking to do is that, and granted

          6  this is New York City, people work all different

          7  hours of the day, some work, some don't work, but

          8  for somebody who does work nine to five, it's one

          9  thing to say, "Before you go to work you've got to

         10  make sure that your sidewalk is swept."  But it

         11  really does seem unfair to me that if they've swept

         12  in the morning, then somebody drops some litter

         13  during the day, that they're held responsible at 2

         14  p.m.  And I think it might be worth -- not might be

         15   -- for my two cents it plainly would be worthwhile

         16  to craft a policy that struck a balance between

         17  fairness and cleanliness so that for the broad sweep

         18  of people we would limit their exposure.

         19                 And I would just say I think that

         20  Council Member Felder made the point, but I just

         21  want to emphasize it, that it's not -- I disagree

         22  with your statement that it would be unfair to have

         23  a specified period during the day, let's say eight

         24  to nine in the morning, when a homeowner could be

         25  ticketed because a homeowner today could be ticketed
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          2  from eight to nine in the morning -- I'm sorry, I

          3  guess not -- from nine to ten in the morning but

          4  could also be ticketed from 10 to 11, 11 to 12 12 to

          5  one and so forth up to 9 p.m.

          6                 It's certainly no more unfair to say

          7  you can only be ticketed from nine to ten in the

          8  morning, and I think it's a good deal less unfair --

          9  more fair.  So for my two cents I think it's worth

         10  it.

         11                 I just would want to also pursue this

         12  question of the -- you say that the ratings for

         13  neighborhoods are established by the Department of

         14  Operations inspecting certain streets within the

         15  neighborhood.  With that -- so is that done on like

         16  a sanitation districtwide basis, so BK1 gets --

         17                 MR. ETERGINEOSO:  It's done on a

         18  section- by section basis and then of course the

         19  overall district gets rated.

         20                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON YASSKY:  Pardon my

         21  ignorance, how many sections within a sanitation

         22  district?

         23                 MR. ETERGINEOSO:  It could vary from

         24  one, let's say in the Bronx, up to eight in Staten

         25  Island and Queens.
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          2                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON YASSKY:  Do you

          3  know which of the streets that are evaluated for --

          4                 MR. ETERGINEOSO:  I wish we did,

          5  everybody would get a hundred percent.  I have no

          6  idea.

          7                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON YASSKY:  I see.

          8                 MR. ETERGINEOSO:  No idea.

          9                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON YASSKY:  But it is

         10  the case that Operations evaluates the same streets

         11  each year essentially?

         12                 MR. ETERGINEOSO:  The same streets

         13  and they're supposed to be a representative sampling

         14  of the district.

         15                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON YASSKY:  Well, I

         16  would urge you to work with Operations and I'd

         17  undertake to do it myself with other Council members

         18  that would share this interest, to encourage them to

         19  rotate so that you don't wind up with certain

         20  districts being, and certain sections, I guess,

         21  being routinely seen as the dirtiest because the

         22  street that gets monitored happens to be a dirty

         23  street.  We all know -- I mean Park Slope is a clean

         24  area.  7th Avenue is dirtier than 3rd Street, than

         25  the residential street.  So I think we need to work
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          2  with Operations to make sure that they're doing this

          3  in a fair way.

          4                 Council Member Felder, I know you had

          5   -- Council Member Nelson, I know you have

          6  additional questions.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER NELSON:  Thank you.  I

          8  wanted, please, just some clarification on a

          9  Gothamesque expression used before, a cliche,

         10   "complaint driven."  It has not been my

         11  understanding that these summonses are all complaint

         12  driven.  If you could clear that for me.  If an

         13  agent's going around --

         14                 MR. ETERGINEOSO:  I'm sorry, can you

         15  repeat that?

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER NELSON:  It's not

         17  always complaint driven, though, the summonses.

         18                 MR. ETERGINEOSO:  No, no, the

         19  complaint driven summonses are dealing with the one

         20  and two- family homes for the dirty sidewalk and the

         21  18" law.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER NELSON:  So it's never

         23  say an agent walking around?

         24                 MR. ETERGINEOSO:  We have agents that

         25  are patrolling, we have recycling agents.  It's not
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          2  a hundred percent complaint driven, no.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER NELSON:  Okay.  I just

          4  wanted to clear that up.  My understanding, it

          5  certainly was not. I thought I discovered something

          6  I did not know before.

          7                 Just before I leave, I just wanted

          8  really to express outrage, and my colleague Council

          9  Member Felder will be going into this, but I just

         10  wanted to register this.  I just hope that you share

         11  the sense of outrage that I do when you hear Council

         12  Member Felder with this property on 17th Avenue.  I

         13  really hope you do.

         14                 MR. ETERGINEOSO:  I'd like to --

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER NELSON:  I'm sure it's

         16  not the only one, but they took the time and effort

         17  to express their concern.  I'm going to leave with

         18  that statement.

         19                 MR. ETERGINEOSO:  We just supplied

         20  you with a copy --

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER NELSON:  I'll take a

         22  look at these summonses and we'll try to find out

         23  what happened and we'll definitely do what we can to

         24  put a stop to that.

         25                 MR. ETERGINEOSO:  I think this is
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          2  what's really wrong with mankind.  I mean it just

          3  boils down to our little microcosm of it.  Thank

          4  you.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER NELSON:  I hope these

          6  are just exceptions to the rule and we'll deal with

          7  it.

          8                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON YASSKY:  Council

          9  Member Felder.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER FELDER:  Okay.  The

         11  package that I furnished you that looks like this, I

         12  think we gave you one, but it has the four

         13  summonses.  On the front of the package there are

         14  agency codes.  There's 831, 828, 827, 829, 830 and

         15  830.  Do you coordinate or who coordinates these,

         16  all of these agencies, or is there anyone that

         17  coordinates where these ticket agents go out or if

         18  they go out at the same time because the packet that

         19  I gave you with the four summonses, the four tickets

         20  are issued by four different codes.  They have four

         21  different -- which seems that the source of the

         22  ticket is coming from four different places.

         23                 MR. ETERGINEOSO:  I'd have to look at

         24  this. I mean we don't coordinate in general with

         25  other city departments that have the power to issue
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          2  summonses.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER FELDER:  What I'm

          4  asking you is there's 831, 828, 827, 829, 830, 830

          5  again.  All of these codes means that there are one,

          6  two, three, four, five, six, in theory six, I think,

          7  unless you can educate me three different ways --

          8  six different ways that somebody can get a summons.

          9  Is that true or not?  Six different -- is that true?

         10                 MR. ETERGINEOSO:  Well, there's six

         11  codes and they all deal with sanitation, so if those

         12  six people happen to come across a summons --

         13  although Sanitation PRU doesn't doesn't deal with

         14  residential areas.  Environmental police usually

         15  don't.  We do have of course a Sanitation Task Force

         16  which is basically on nights looking for impounds.

         17  So we do have the san cops on days, we do have

         18  enforcement agents and we do have the supervisors

         19  that work in the district.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER FELDER:  So at a

         21  minimum, at a minimum I would say that there are at

         22  least four different sources of tickets.  I would

         23  say that there are four different sources of tickets

         24  and in fact if you look at the codes I have 828,

         25  829, 831, and I can't even read the other one
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          2  carefully, which means that 829, 831 and 828, the

          3  Task Force, at least three different ones issued

          4  these summonses.

          5  And you're saying to me that there's no one that

          6  really coordinates who goes out to issues tickets

          7  where.  I'm not blaming these people 'cause in their

          8  minds they're going out -- they could be going out

          9  for the same home issuing tickets without knowing

         10  that anyone else issued the ticket that day.

         11                 MR. ETERGINEOSO:  I'd like to be able

         12  to look at these and study these a bit before and

         13  then make some kind of comment.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER FELDER:  I would

         15  appreciate when you look into it if you can please,

         16  besides analyzing it, if you can please, if we the

         17  committee, if we can request that we should have it

         18  in writing, I think that it would be clear that

         19  there be some coodinative effort to make sure that

         20  different agencies are not issuing tickets in the

         21  same areas at the same time.  It doesn't make sense.

         22    It just doesn't make sense.  It doesn't make sense

         23  for the department for things like this to go on.  I

         24  think --

         25                 MR. ETERGINEOSO:  We'll look into it

                                                            43

          1  SANITATION AND SOLID WASTE MANAGEMENT

          2  and get back to you.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER FELDER:  Okay.  But

          4  I'd like that and I'd like to know in writing how

          5  these agencies are coordinated, if they are and how

          6  it's done, so that we can help make sure that

          7  doesn't happen again.

          8                 Now, do you know someone by the name

          9  of Virginia C. Fields?  C. Virginia Fields, I'm

         10  sorry.  The Borough President of Manhattan.

         11                 MR. ETERGINEOSO:  I don't know her

         12  personally.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER FELDER:  All right.  I

         14  don't know her personally either but she got a

         15  ticket for paper that was not matted down, it was

         16  just on the ground.

         17                 MR. ETERGINEOSO:  I have no way of

         18  knowing that.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER FELDER:  Okay.

         20                 MR. ETERGINEOSO:  I'm not taking her

         21  word for that.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER FELDER:  So I would

         23  take her word --

         24                 MR. ETERGINEOSO:  Again, we will

         25  stress to our people that in situations like that it
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          2  has to be quite evident that the material has been

          3  there for a while.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER FELDER:  I want to

          5  make it clear that my anger is not towards you --

          6                 MR. ETERGINEOSO:  Oh, I understand

          7  that.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER FELDER:  -- Or to

          9  anybody here, and I appreciate as well as the

         10  citizens of the city what the Sanitation Department

         11  does to help make sure that our neighborhoods are

         12  clean and that the garbage is picked up.  That's not

         13  the issue.  The issue is that our offices have been

         14  inundated, I say without exaggeration.  My office

         15  and some of my colleagues have shared the same thing

         16  and as well as Howard Feuer from the District

         17  Managers at the Community Boards.  If I had to

         18  pinpoint the largest number of complaints about

         19  things, it would be sanitation summonses and that's

         20  why I think we have to do something.

         21                 Earlier I asked you if you could give

         22  me a breakdown as to where, I'd like the committee

         23  to get a breakdown as to where the tickets -- the

         24  number of tickets issued by sanitation police for

         25  homeowners, where -- I don't care if you do it by
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          2  Councilmanic district or Community Board district --

          3  and I also want to know how many of those tickets in

          4  those districts are paid.  I'd like to know when

          5  they issue tickets -- for example, let's say

          6  Community Board 10 gets 500 tickets a year, what

          7  percentage of those tickets are paid.  I'd like to

          8  have that information because I would be very

          9  concerned if tickets are issued in neighborhoods

         10  where the collection -- I'm not talking about

         11  garbage, I'm talking abut money collection on the

         12  tickets issued -- where the percentage of the

         13  collection is higher and I'd like to know and I'd to

         14  get that information.  Did you understand the

         15  question?  If not, I can make it clearer.

         16                 MR. ETERGINEOSO:  I understood the

         17  question.

         18  We get that information from ECB.  It's not coming

         19  from

         20  our --

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER FELDER:  I don't mind,

         22  but since you're here and I don't want --

         23                 MR. ETERGINEOSO:  We do not put our

         24  people in locations that will produce revenue based

         25  on ECB reports. We're trying to deal strictly with
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          2  score card rating.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER FELDER:  Understood.

          4  I still would like that information.

          5                 MR. ETERGINEOSO:  You shall have it.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER FELDER:  I appreciate

          7  it.

          8                 Now, another package that we

          9  furnished you I think -- do you have this package?

         10  It's the first package I gave you with about eight

         11  tickets in it.  On the cover of it it has Sanitation

         12  Department.  That's it.  You said earlier that the

         13  policy has been not to give tickets before 9 a.m.

         14  The first ticket in this thing is 7:15 a.m.  You

         15  have a ticket 7:15 a.m.  Oh, yes, and then there's

         16  one 9:12, but in your other package -- and that was

         17  this past June, in fact, I think it's 6/2 or

         18  6/12/03, 7:15 a.m.  It's a wonderful ticket agent

         19  who's --

         20                 MR. ETERGINEOSO:  That's the time of

         21  the offense.  What happens is that the agent then

         22  goes back later on in the day after 9 a.m. To issue

         23  the summons.  In other words, they come across the

         24  offense at that time --

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER FELDER:  Can you
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          2  explain --

          3                 MR. ETERGINEOSO:  -- They write that

          4  up and then they go back at a later time and issue

          5  the summons.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER FELDER:  You mean that

          7  the offense was at 5:30 in the morning and they went

          8  back at 7:15 a.m.?

          9                 MR. ETERGINEOSO:  5:30 -- I have to

         10  look at that one.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER FELDER:  I'm telling

         12  you there's a ticket here 7:15 a.m.

         13                 MR. ETERGINEOSO:  7:15 is different.

         14  7:15 we have SEA agents working 6 a.m. On recycling.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER FELDER:  Chairman, can

         16  you -- am I -- don't answer the question.  Say I'm

         17  out of my mind and then I put you in a very

         18  difficult position.

         19                 I was under the impression that you

         20  said earlier that the policy is that you don't issue

         21  tickets -- you issue tickets between 9 a.m. And 9

         22  p.m.  Isn't that what you said?

         23                 MR. ETERGINEOSO:  The summons was

         24  observed at 7:15 or 7:30.  It wasn't issued until

         25  after 9 a.m.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER FELDER:  Oh, I see.

          3  So, in other words, you're saying to me that in

          4  theory -- I'm asking again the same question -- if

          5  the summons were observed at 5:00 in the morning and

          6  the summons could be issued at 9:30 a.m.

          7                 MR. ETERGINEOSO:  We don't have

          8  anybody working 5 a.m. To issue summons.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER FELDER:  What time do

         10  they start?  They start at --

         11                 MR. ETERGINEOSO:  They start at six.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER FELDER:  6 a.m.  So

         13  really you're saying they can ticket -- okay, I'm

         14  sorry, they cannot write the summons before 9 a.m.

         15                 MR. ETERGINEOSO:  They cannot issue

         16  it to the person.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER FELDER:  They can't

         18  issue it.

         19                 MR. ETERGINEOSO:  They can write it

         20  but --

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER FELDER:  The offense

         22  that

         23  they will be issuing a summons for could be any time

         24  from

         25  6 a.m. --
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          2                 MR. ETERGINEOSO:  From the start of

          3  their shift.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER FELDER:  Until?  When

          5  is the last shift that exists?

          6                 MR. ETERGINEOSO:  Well, we wouldn't

          7  go past

          8  9 p.m., like we said.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER FELDER:  I only had

         10  two coffees today.

         11                 MR. ETERGINEOSO:  I didn't have any.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER FELDER:  If you want,

         13  you can have the rest of mine.  And I'm telling you

         14  that there's something awry.  If you can clarify

         15  when they are allowed to notice the offense and when

         16  they're allowed to issue a summons, what's your

         17  policy?

         18                 MR. ETERGINEOSO:  Can you say that

         19  again?

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER FELDER:  Yes, sure.

         21  What time during the day or night are they allowed

         22  to notice the offense?

         23                 MR. ETERGINEOSO:  We have different

         24  people giving out summonses on different shifts.

         25  With SEA, with the agents, with Enforcement, we have
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          2  recycling SEAs that work 6 a.m. To 2 p.m.  They come

          3  up and they check the recycling rounds.  If they

          4  come across a recycling summons, they write it up,

          5  then they go back at a later time to issue it.  The

          6  regular SEAs go with their routing times.  We then

          7  have san cops that go out.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER FELDER:  What are

          9  their hours?

         10                 MR. ETERGINEOSO:  Their hours are

         11  basically seven to three and six to two on a day

         12  line.  And the same thing --

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER FELDER:  And what's

         14  the other shift?

         15                 MR. ETERGINEOSO:  Three to 11.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER FELDER:  3 p.m. To 11

         17  p.m.?

         18                 MR. ETERGINEOSO:  But they're on -- 3

         19  to 11 they'll do some routing times possibly,

         20  commercials and they'll look for impounds.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER FELDER:  Do they ever

         22  notice an offense after -- that means in theory they

         23  can notice an offense at 10:59 p.m.  Is that true?

         24                 MR. ETERGINEOSO:  They won't be doing

         25  residential.  Let me defer this to Enforcement,
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          2  please?

          3  Mike?

          4                 MR. BURKE:  The Illegal Dumping Task

          5  Force would not be enforcing against residential

          6  properties which is your concern.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER FELDER:  I'm sorry,

          8  could you just turn the mike on.

          9                 MR. BURKE:  The Illegal Dumping Task

         10  Force which works certain hours in the evening, 3

         11  p.m. To 11 p.m., would not be enforcing against

         12  residential premises.  They would be looking for

         13  illegal dumpers.  They may be enforcing the

         14  commercial routing on the four to five or five to

         15  six but they would not be looking for the type of I

         16  think example that you're giving us at the hearing.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER FELDER:  Okay.  So

         18  it's clear to me that what was said earlier,

         19  unintentionally I think, that tickets are only

         20  issued from 9 a.m. To 9 p.m., that's true, but that

         21  means that they can notice an offense three hours

         22  earlier than that.  I'm not talking about later than

         23  that but certainly from 6 a.m.  I still think, Mr.

         24  Chairman, that it would be more reasonable that

         25  there be a specific routing hour time, as you

                                                            52

          1  SANITATION AND SOLID WASTE MANAGEMENT

          2  mentioned earlier, than to expect them to do it all

          3  day.

          4                 I'd like to continue the discussion

          5  but I know that we have witnesses here to testify.

          6  Before we call the witnesses I just want to ask the

          7  committee, the memo that was directed to all of us

          8  about Operation Nice, I think that if there's

          9  anything that we can do to stop this, I want to stop

         10  this operation from going forward until I think the

         11  city chooses some streets.  I have an idea.  I think

         12  it's about time that we find out who Superman is.

         13  All right? I'd like to know which streets they've

         14  been analyzing for the last ten years and then let

         15  them go pick another street and not tell us.  I'd

         16  like to know how they've come up with the ratings

         17  for the last ten years and then pick some new

         18  streets and not tell us.  Because I think targeting

         19  specific neighborhoods based on an analysis of the

         20  same streets for the last ten years is intolerable

         21  and should not be done.

         22  Is there any way that we can stop this?   Okay, we

         23  received it today.  I'd like to do that.

         24                 I just want to end by mentioning

         25  these people of Harlem, that it's clear some of the

                                                            53

          1  SANITATION AND SOLID WASTE MANAGEMENT

          2  other bills that we're supporting we feel very

          3  strongly about keeping neighborhoods clean as well.

          4  So with the postering on the cars, I'd like to know

          5  how many tickets -- I'd like you to issue a thousand

          6  more tickets for the fliers that are put on the cars

          7  because that's really where a lot of the garbage is

          8  coming from.  And from some of the other bills that

          9  we're sponsoring it's clear that our intent is to

         10  work with you to try to keep the neighborhood clean.

         11    We're trying to take the onus off my mother and

         12  other people, whether they're young or old, from

         13  staying outside all day.  I mean I have one -- if

         14  you want I can present this.  I have more props. You

         15  want this one?  It's bizarre, it's just nuts.  This

         16  is the guy who got four tickets.  He's so upset he

         17  wanted me to enlarge it even six times the size of

         18  this.

         19                 Anyway, I want to thank you for

         20  coming.

         21                 MR. ETERGINEOSO:  Thank you for

         22  having us.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER FELDER:  Thank you,

         24  Mr. Chairman.

         25                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON YASSKY:  As the
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          2  substitute Chairman I'm delighted to note that we

          3  are joined and graced by the presence of our

          4  permanent and enduring Chair, Council Member

          5  McMahon.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON McMAHON:  Thank you, Mr.

          7  Acting Chair.  I want to thank you both for

          8  proceeding with this hearing.  As you know, I had a

          9  very important event in my district which just

         10  concluded and I have to go back, I actually have to

         11  be there at 2:00, for a very important task force

         12  meeting on overdevelopment which is very important.

         13  I'm glad that you guys brought forth these very

         14  important issues and I want my friends from the

         15  department to know that whatever happens today, I'll

         16  be back in that chair next time so don't worry about

         17  it.  Thank you very much.

         18                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON YASSKY:  Thank

         19  you.  I'll note, Mr. Chair, we will -- when we have

         20  an opportunity to fill you in, I think this has been

         21  an extremely enlightening hearing and I really think

         22  it has pointed the way toward how we can improve

         23  both cleanliness on two of the bills and on the bill

         24  that Council Member Felder introduced find a way to

         25  reconcile cleanliness with fairness to regular
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          2  homeowners. I think it's been a very productive

          3  hearing.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON McMAHON:  And those are

          5  certainly two very important issues and I know that

          6  the work that you've done here today will help us

          7  get there.  I think it just should be a reminder to

          8  Council Member Felder that when he got off as a

          9  permanent member of this committee he probably made

         10  a mistake.  If you're in agreement, Mr. Acting

         11  Chair, we will consider to take him back on.

         12                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON YASSKY:  I follow

         13  your leadership on this as on all matters, Chair

         14  McMahon.

         15                 Well, thank you.  Before you go,

         16  Chief, I do want to thank you for your testimony and

         17  for your efforts every day to keep the city clean,

         18  which I benefit from and I respect and admire

         19  greatly.

         20                 My last two questions.  I do believe,

         21  and I thought the question from Council Member

         22  Felder was very valuable.  It really is a window

         23  then of six in the morning till nine at night that a

         24  homeowner is under an obligation to monitor their

         25  cleanliness.  I guess that just strengthens my
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          2  belief that it's only fair to give people a smaller

          3  window.

          4                 Let me ask you, and I understand from

          5  your testimony you do not -- you oppose that?  If

          6  there were to be a window of an hour, an hour and a

          7  half that was the period that homeowners were

          8  responsible for making sure that they were clean and

          9  not being ticketed during that time and not have

         10  litter during that time, what, from the point of

         11  view of cleanliness and of your mission, what would

         12  be the most appropriate window?

         13                 MR. ETERGINEOSO:  I would think early

         14  in the morning.

         15                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON YASSKY:  Okay.

         16  That's very helpful.  Thank you.

         17                 And my last question, and again I

         18  understand the point that the cleanliness mission --

         19  what would you think of a plan that had a period, an

         20  hour, hour and a half period when a ticket could be

         21  issued and then the rest of the time a warning would

         22  be issued so that the homeowner would know --

         23  somebody who's out all day at work is informed,

         24   "Listen, there's a problem.  Your house -- you have

         25  a real litter problem in the afternoon," and then
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          2  they can figure out how to deal with that.  What

          3  would you think of that?

          4                 MR. ETERGINEOSO:  When you say a

          5  summons is issued, you're not talking about a

          6  personal service summons? In other words, that

          7  person does not have to be home to get the summons.

          8                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON YASSKY:  No, the

          9  kind of ticket that my constituents get where they

         10  get home and it's on the door.

         11                 MR. ETERGINEOSO:  Well, I'd like to

         12  hear more about that.  I'm sure that -- it sounds

         13  like it's in the right direction as far as our

         14  position.  I'd like to work with you on that.

         15                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON YASSKY:  I would

         16  ask you consider that.  Thank you very much.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER FELDER:  One last

         18  question?

         19                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON YASSKY:          Yes

         20  , Council Member Felder.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER FELDER:  Just one last

         22  thing that I'd ask --

         23                 MR. ETERGINEOSO:  This coffee's

         24  costing me a lot.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER FELDER:  It's going to
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          2  cost you a lot more after you drink it.

          3                 One last thing that I didn't bring up

          4  is that especially in a lot of the congested

          5  neighborhoods the homes that are right near

          6  commercial strips, it's -- the city has wastebaskets

          7  and the city is strained.  If it was up to me the

          8  Sanitation Department would be allocated ten times

          9  what it's allocated now so that you should be able

         10  to do what you need to do.  But the fact is, the

         11  public wastebaskets, sometimes due to the fact that

         12  we have cuts in services, are not picked up often

         13  enough which means that somebody who lives near a

         14  commercial strip, even in theory, even under my

         15  bill, which at the end of the coffee you're going to

         16  be in favor of, but even a person, for example, who

         17  cleans at 8:00, at 9:15 if he lives near Avenue J or

         18  some other busy strip and the garbage cans have not

         19  been picked up, and it doesn't have to be a very

         20  windy day, can expect to have some garbage, you

         21  know, if they live right off the corner.  I'm

         22  picking on my mother again, but my mother lives on

         23  18th Avenue.  It wouldn't matter if she swept all

         24  day.

         25                 MR. ETERGINEOSO:  And that's where we
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          2  hope that discretion plays.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER FELDER:  Yes.

          4                 MR. ETERGINEOSO:  Bus stops, windy

          5  spots.  No matter what you do, you're still going to

          6  find those problems there.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER FELDER:  So would you

          8  suggest at least that in those areas where we can

          9  clearly define the commercial strips, one of your

         10  officers go out, and obviously it's clear that they

         11  haven't executed the discretion that they should,

         12  that those tickets should be dismissed?

         13                 MR. ETERGINEOSO:  No, I didn't say

         14  that.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER FELDER:  I know you

         16  didn't say that.  I'm trying to put that in your --

         17                 MR. ETERGINEOSO:  I said that we will

         18  use discretion as we have been in those areas.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER FELDER:  So I'm saying

         20  to coordinate with ECB, because once the ticket is

         21  issued then we're stuck, to have some policy

         22  coordinated with ECB once we get this bill passed

         23  because we're going to get --

         24                 MR. ETERGINEOSO:  It's something we

         25  should work on.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER FELDER:  Okay.

          3  Appreciate it.

          4                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON YASSKY:  Thank you

          5  so much.  Again, I want to thank the whole panel for

          6  your participation.  I note that we are joined by

          7  the stalwart Council Member Jim Gennaro.  I would

          8  also -- let me call up the next panel which includes

          9  Mary Ann Rothman, representing the Council of New

         10  York Cooperatives and Condominiums, Mayer Beck of

         11  15th Avenue, Howard Feuer, representing Community

         12  Board No. 11 in Brooklyn and Chaim Israel,

         13  representing Community Board 12 in Brooklyn, I

         14  think.  And also Yaakov Freeman representing 16th

         15  Avenue.

         16                 Let me say that the folks coming up

         17  now as well as to the others waiting to testify, I

         18  know that we spent a great deal of time with the

         19  first panel from the Department of Sanitation and I

         20  beg and appreciate your indulgence and your patience

         21  in staying with us.  I think it was very important

         22  that we have a full dialogue on this with the

         23  Department of Sanitation which is why we took the

         24  time we did.  I do again appreciate your patience.

         25                 Ms. Rothman, I understand that you
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          2  have time constraints, so would you please lead off.

          3                 MS. ROTHMAN:  Thank you very much.

          4  My name is Mary Ann Rothman.  I'm the Executive

          5  Director of the Council of New York Cooperatives and

          6  Condominiums, which is a membership group, as you

          7  might expect, for cooperatives and condominiums.  We

          8  provide information, education and advocacy.  We've

          9  been around for about 25 years and you've doubtless

         10  seen me before testifying to try to remind the City

         11  Council at all times that part of the American dream

         12  of home ownership is very much alive and well in

         13  cooperatives and condominiums in our wonderful city.

         14

         15                 I'm here today because I believe co-

         16  ops and condos contribute enormously to their

         17  neighborhoods.  They serve as anchors and so on.

         18  They share the challenges and joys of being a part

         19  of this city and quality of life becomes important

         20  to all of us.  Fliers slipped under doors, left

         21  outside of doors, left outside the building,

         22  littering the grounds are tremendously aggravating.

         23  They're not major things but they're the kind of

         24  little things that can make you much less happy in

         25  the course of a day.
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          2                 Incidentally, I bumped into the

          3  leader of another co- op organization on the subway

          4  coming here and he has asked that I remind you that

          5  I speak not only for my organization but for the

          6  many organizations that represent the half a million

          7  shareholders and unit owners and their families that

          8  make their homes in co- ops and condos.

          9                 I want to congratulate you Acting

         10  Chairman Yassky for the rather ingenious solution

         11  that you found to the pernicious flier problem and

         12  offer the support of my organization and of the

         13  other families in co- ops and condos. I think the

         14  Department of Sanitation in their testimony did a

         15  fabulous job of defining the hazards of fliers, so I

         16  simply add my vote of support.

         17                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON YASSKY:  Thank you

         18  so much, Ms. Rothman.  Again, I understand you're

         19  under time constraints so I'm just going to see if

         20  there are any questions from the panel for you and

         21  then you can leave.

         22  Thank you again for your support and for all the

         23  work that you have done on behalf of the many, many

         24  families, mine included, who live in co- ops and

         25  condominiums.  You're really -- you do more work
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          2  that I believe many of us in government, speaking

          3  for just myself, in government to maintain quality

          4  of life.  So thank you for it.

          5                 Please continue.  Why don't we have

          6   -- I'm sorry --

          7                 MR. FEUER:  I'm Howard Feuer.

          8                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON YASSKY:  Mr.

          9  Feuer, could you please go ahead and testify?  We

         10  will figure out who's left remaining.

         11                 MR. FEUER:  I'm Howard Feuer.  I'm

         12  District Manager of Brooklyn Community Board 11.  I

         13  want to thank you for this opportunity to speak

         14  about this, I think it's Intro. 530, Councilman

         15  Felder's bill.

         16                 Just to let the committee know that

         17  last week my Community Board unanimously adopted a

         18  resolution supporting this intro.  We've always

         19  supported the Department of Sanitation in its

         20  efforts to keep New York City clean, however, we

         21  realize that there needs to be more fairness and

         22  more equity with the new 311 system.  There are

         23  going to be more and more complaints driven -- there

         24  will be more and more residents calling about their

         25  neighbors and unless there's some real clear
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          2  understanding on issues such as this, issues when

          3  people can be summonsed, I think it behooves all of

          4  us, especially, to keep New York City clean.       I

          5  think the Council has an responsibility really to

          6  make our neighborhoods liveable I mean.  And to have

          7  24 hour a day, seven day a week possible

          8  enforcement, because 311 is going to be open for

          9  business seven days a week, 365 days a year, and we

         10  all know that Sanitation takes the 311 system very,

         11  very seriously.  Each and every complaint that they

         12  get they respond to and they're going to respond to

         13  every single time a homeowner calls in about another

         14  homeowner.  Without a bill like this, we're

         15  certainly going to have -- it's going to make it a

         16  little more difficult to live in New York City.

         17                 Also, I just want to say, aside,

         18  there were two other issues and I thought that this

         19  hearing was really wonderful.  I wish my other

         20  colleagues, District Managers, were here to hear

         21  some of the things.

         22                 I want to say to Councilman Yassky,

         23  bringing up the fact that where are these people

         24  looking who are giving these score card ratings and

         25  the fact that they have done this for the last ten
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          2  years?  I think that you people should really follow

          3  up on that.  There really needs to be fairness and

          4  equity and there may not be any fairness and any

          5  equity that was decided ten years ago.  Certainly,

          6  no one even knows what factors and how they factored

          7  them in. All we do is get these pieces of paper once

          8  a month and it's just very, very, very -- it needs a

          9  closer look at.

         10                 Also, Councilman, you talked about

         11  litter baskets.  I think this committee should

         12  really look at litter baskets.  I'm at the point in

         13  my district where I think I want to get rid of them

         14  all because I think now it's become a place where

         15  people bring their garbage to work or they take it

         16  to the train and they're throwing it in those litter

         17  baskets.  Unfortunately, the merchants or the

         18  people, you know, they're the ones who are

         19  suffering.

         20                 Just yesterday I went to a meeting of

         21  the 18th Avenue Board of Trade.  Right outside there

         22  there was a litter basket.  It was littered with a

         23  VCR, all kinds of garbage.  You have to do something

         24  about that.  Thank you.

         25                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON YASSKY:  Thank
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          2  you, Mr. Feuer.  I know that Sue Wolfe, who I

          3  believe is the other remaining witness -- why don't

          4  you please come and join the panel and all testify

          5  as a group.  And Mr. Israel, why don't you come up

          6   -- Mr. Israel, please, you go ahead.

          7                 MR. ISRAEL:  Thank you, gentlemen.

          8  At one time one would bestow blessings upon public

          9  servants.  "May your tenure be long and fruitful."

         10  But how times have changed.  Today they bestow

         11  blessings upon public servants by saying, "May your

         12  tenure be full term and fruitful."

         13                 I'm from Community Board 12.  I'm Co

         14  Chairman.  I do not represent the entire district,

         15  only those who have gotten tickets in the last 12

         16  months.  The other 5% will have to speak for

         17  themselves.

         18                 I think that you have hit on a wisdom

         19  that the sanitation enforcement agents have known

         20  for years, that is that properties are an easier

         21  target than litter bugs. To keep the street clean,

         22  it would really require that the enforcement agents

         23  ticket the people who created the litter,

         24  the people who throw it down on the sidewalk and

         25  continue walking rather than the homeowner who is
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          2  not even home at the time that this occurred.

          3                 The law has to be written very

          4  clearly that a homeowner is not responsible for the

          5  cleanliness of his sidewalk but the homeowner's

          6  responsible to sweep his sidewalk at whatever given

          7  time it is.  That would take the discretion out of

          8  the department in enforcing and causing homeowners

          9  to pay unfair penalties because to leave it up to

         10  the discretion of the department, you can well see

         11  from the testimony of Sanitation that the policy's

         12  here today, gone tomorrow.  It's not publicly stated

         13  and when an enforcement agent violates that policy,

         14  the only one who faces the consequence is the victim

         15  of that ticket.  The enforcement agent gets a pat on

         16  his back and perhaps even gets rewarded for that

         17  violation of policy and the homeowner is stuck with

         18  the $50 or $100 ticket.

         19                 It's very important, and I agree with

         20  you, that these policy matters not be policy but

         21  legislated so that the entire enforcement process is

         22  made fair to all concerned and at the same time

         23  actual, real progress is made in keeping the city

         24  clean.

         25                 I just want to add my thanks to
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          2  Councilman Felder for sponsoring the Felder bills.

          3  Thank you.

          4                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON YASSKY:  Thank

          5  you.  Mr. Beck.  I'm sorry, can you remain just in

          6  case there are any questions?  Thank you.

          7                 MR. BECK:   My name is Mayer Beck.  I

          8  appreciate for taking up this issue and especially

          9  Simcha Felder.  I don't know everybody here, but I

         10  appreciate the tremendous amount of work for our

         11  community and especially in the area.

         12                 I don't understand the Sanitation

         13  Department. First of all, when they issue a ticket

         14  it's hung on the door.  So I don't understand how

         15  they issue four tickets because the issuing agent

         16  should have seen -- even if you say that the owner

         17  took off one, but then he would have tooken away the

         18  garbage.  Normally they stick it on the door.

         19                 Another thing is the garbage cans are

         20  constantly full.  Now, I'm next to a school that has

         21  over a thousand kids, 1,200 kids.  The whole

         22  surrounding area is also other schools.  By us I

         23  could clean up 8:00 in the morning before I go to

         24  work and I got tickets afterwards 9:00, 10:00,

         25  11:00.  When I come home I also clean it.  When I
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          2  went to the Department of Sanitation they told me

          3  it's not enough effort.  Now, you know, I don't know

          4  how much effort it's supposed to be.  I appreciate

          5  that you're doing it.

          6                 The routing system, I don't

          7  understand.  If it's done by stores that are there

          8  through a whole day and they have routing system,

          9  why shouldn't we as a small one, two and three-

         10  family buildings, why shouldn't we have routings.

         11  We are not there.  They're not responsible even

         12  though they're there.  Why should we be responsible

         13  when we're not there.

         14                 Another thing is the garbage cans

         15  should have covers on them because people put in

         16  VCRs.  If there would be covers, people would not

         17  put in VCRs.  The Sanitation Department, I went with

         18  one of the constituents of Mr. Felder today in the

         19  morning.  The garbage cans, we have on the corner

         20  four garbage cans.  Three of them were taken, one

         21  was not because there is a mattress there since last

         22  week. They went through so many garbage trucks and

         23  nobody picked up that garbage can and that it's

         24  still there.             On the corner of 44th

         25  Street they did take away all the garbage cans.
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          2                 I appreciate it, please, because it's

          3  not fair.  I have to go to the hearings and they

          4  tell me -- anyways -- and the point of it is if a

          5  person knows that he's going to lose, he doesn't

          6  clean at all because if he's going to clean now --

          7                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON YASSKY:  Right.

          8                 MR. BECK:  -- It's later -- in an

          9  hour --

         10                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON YASSKY:  Why waste

         11  the time.

         12                 MR. BECK:  Why waste the time.

         13                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON YASSKY:  Thank

         14  you.

         15                 MR. BECK:  Thank you very much.  Ms.

         16  Wolfe?

         17                 MS. WOLFE:  Thank you.  I represent

         18  the Boerum Hill Association in Brooklyn.  It's right

         19  behind downtown Brooklyn.

         20                 We very much like the spirit of 480,

         21  however, we think it needs a little tweaking, if you

         22  will.

         23                 Boerum Hill for a number of years has

         24  been very concerned with the litter on our streets

         25  and one of the solutions we came up with are these
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          2  cards which people can put on their homes, on their

          3  gates and they say, "No menus, circulars,

          4  advertisements."  These have been effective when

          5  they are put on the doorways and on the gates.

          6                 Now, talk about tweaking.  The first

          7  line of this where it talks about "No person shall

          8  throw, pass, distribute or cause to permit to be

          9  thrown any material,"

         10  et cetera, it's a long sentence but perhaps could be

         11  added, "or a sign posted noting none of the above."

         12                 Secondly, the homes in our district

         13  are varied so when this gets so specific about 5'

         14  from a doorway.  A doorway is one thing.  A gate to

         15  a brownstone is another.  A stoop is another.  So

         16  perhaps where it reads, "The receptacle is placed

         17  outside the main entrance to be located within 5' of

         18  the entrance," perhaps that could read, "the

         19  receptacle near an entrance or gate or brownstone

         20  stoop."

         21                 And I must say, we really do

         22  appreciate the possibility of what this law could do

         23  for us.  Thank you.

         24                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON YASSKY:  Well,

         25  thank you very much.  I appreciate the testimony of
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          2  everybody on the panel -- excuse me.  Ms. Wolfe, I

          3  congratulate you.  I know that you now do represent

          4  the recently elected President of the Boerum Hill

          5  Association.  So congratulations on that.

          6                 I would just say on that, on Intro.

          7  480 in particular, when this bill was drafted there

          8  were some -- it was drafted to try and accommodate

          9  some of the constitutional questions about

         10  limitations on free speech.

         11  I would say that the recent court decisions

         12  upholding the "Do Not Call Registry" now make it

         13  crystal clear that homeowners have a perfect right

         14  to prohibit people from littering on their property

         15  just as they do from -- to prohibit people from

         16  making unwanted phone calls.  I think those

         17  decisions give -- make it clear that the Council has

         18  more flexibility than we may have thought a year ago

         19  when this bill was first drafted.  So I am going to

         20  look to broaden its scope.  I thank you for your

         21  testimony.

         22                 No other questions.  Thank you --

         23                 MR. BECK:  On the issue of when

         24  should be the time the problem is that, let's say,

         25  on my block and my area it's 9:30 when the alternate
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          2  side takes effect.  Okay?  Now, if their car's

          3  parked and when I go to work at 8:00, I cannot pick

          4  up the litter if there's a tire on top of a sign, a

          5  paper, and I can't pick it up.  When they move away

          6  and Sanitation comes they give us tickets.

          7                 The fliers that they do on cars, my

          8  property runs a hundred feet on it and people just

          9  take it and throw it on the floor.

         10                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON YASSKY:  You know,

         11  that's a very important point that you're making and

         12  I would --

         13                 MR. BECK:  They just throw -- I mean

         14  somebody down the block is not going to go to a

         15  garbage can.

         16                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON YASSKY:  Yes,

         17  that's a very important point that you're making and

         18  I will say I appreciated the Chief's willingness to

         19  think about this and to say that really in the

         20  morning is better.  And particularly I think clearly

         21  the window -- if we're going to encourage sweeping

         22  during a particular time, it should be prior to when

         23  the alternate side goes into effect because the

         24  whole point then is that whatever litter is swept

         25  into the curb will be cleaned up by the mechanical

                                                            74

          1  SANITATION AND SOLID WASTE MANAGEMENT

          2  brooms.  So I think you're raising an extremely

          3  important point.

          4                 You know, I know we are under time

          5  constraints, so I want to thank you again for your

          6  participation here today.  It's very much

          7  appreciated.

          8                 Let me call up -- I'm sorry, is

          9  Yaakov Freeman -- I'm sorry, we did not hear your

         10  testimony.  I apologize.  Why don't we go ahead and

         11  hear it right now.

         12                 MR. FREEMAN:  Okay.  The Chief had

         13  testified about using discretion, about reasonable

         14  efforts.  That is baloney because I have come to the

         15  EBC, to the courts, where I once received a ticket

         16  in front of my house that a man wrote down that

         17  there was matted leaves and papers and everything

         18  else that the Chief said they'd be looking for. The

         19  problem was the night before I had swept up and

         20  there were no matted leaves, there was nothing

         21  there.  And the man wrote a totally false ticket.  I

         22  came in with two notarized letters to ECB and I get

         23  back, "We do not find that you do reasonable effort

         24  to keep your property clean."  I mean, I swept that

         25  day in the morning, you know, and at night, the

                                                            75

          1  SANITATION AND SOLID WASTE MANAGEMENT

          2  night before.  There was nothing.  I spent 45

          3  minutes the night before cleaning up.  It wasn't

          4  that it was -- I have a hundred -- I live in an

          5  apartment building on the corner and I have 125 feet

          6  in front of my house so it takes me time.  I spent

          7  45 minutes that night cleaning up.

          8                 Discretion about wind.  Friday, 40

          9  mile an hour wind.  Here's a Friday ticket.  Right?

         10  We don't use discretion.  We give out tickets

         11  because you've got to give out tickets.

         12                 And then I found out a very great

         13  thing:  We don't give out tickets -- we have a

         14  policy, we don't give out tickets to one family, two

         15  family, three family, four family, six family.  I

         16  live in an eight- family house.  So therefore, all

         17  the guys -- and it's not like I live in an eight-

         18  family house where everybody is eight- family

         19  houses, I live in an apartment in an eight- family

         20  house, all surrounded by one- family houses.  So

         21  therefore, we have this policy that says that the

         22  whole neighborhood could be sloppy but we're going

         23  to blame it on the eight- family houses that get

         24  everybody else's things because nobody -- I'm not

         25  going to call up 311 and complain about my neighbors
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          2  because I'm not a snitch and I'm not going to do

          3  that.  I think people should clean up.  But I think

          4  if we want to keep the city clean we have to go

          5  around -- if we have neighborhoods that the people

          6  say that they're not clean, we've got to go around

          7  and you enforce the law to everybody.  But you have

          8  to tell them it's fair, you know, one family, two

          9  family, three family, whatever it is, but you give

         10  them a window, you give them a time when it has to

         11  be done.  If it's early in the morning or later in

         12  the evening, whatever you decide, but there's got to

         13  be a time that everybody can get it clean so that

         14  the big guys don't have to pay for all the little

         15  guys.

         16                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON YASSKY:  Indeed.

         17  Well, thank you again.  I want to say it's your

         18  personal experiences that have been so enlightening

         19  for the committee and I really think are the spur

         20  for us to act here.  I want to thank you again for

         21  taking time out of your private schedules to come

         22  and participate in this public service. Thank you

         23  again.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER FELDER:  Councilman, I

         25  want to correct you on one thing.  That mention
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          2  about the alternate side of the street parking, that

          3  issue should be that afterwards -- if you sweep your

          4   --

          5                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON YASSKY:  It should

          6  be before I'm saying, that the cleaning period

          7  should be before the alternate side hours so that

          8  then whatever's swept into the street will be picked

          9  up by the broom.

         10                 MR. FREEMAN:  No, you cannot sweep

         11  anything into the street because then you'll get the

         12  18" ticket, so you can't sweep anything into the

         13  street.  The mechanical broom has nothing to do with

         14  it.  I once tried that thing. You know, it's

         15  Thursday and it's 9:15 and therefore at 9:30 the

         16  broom's coming through so therefore I'll sweep my

         17  sidewalk but the broom will take care of the street.

         18    I

         19  got -- 9:15 I got a ticket for that.  So you can't

         20  push anything into the street.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER FELDER:  Just to

         22  clarify things, I think the Chairman, Council Member

         23  Yassky, mentioned was if we're going to -- first of

         24  all, there's not going to be any perfect solution to

         25  this.  We're going to have to find something that
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          2  makes sense, some kind of sense. And it's clear that

          3  doing -- it seems that doing it from eight to nine

          4  in the morning makes the most sense.

          5                 In terms of the mechanical brooms,

          6  the issue, you're right, is that you're obligated to

          7  keep 18" into the street clean, but I have pictures,

          8  photographs, here of the mechanical brooms that come

          9  across that are supposed to be cleaning the streets.

         10    While they may be cleaning the streets, but

         11  they're making the sidewalks filthy when they do it.

         12    So therefore, cleaning -- having an eight to nine

         13  period before the mechanical brooms is maybe not

         14  perfect but it may be the best of an imperfect

         15  solution.  I think having the time period before the

         16  mechanical broom is much better than having it

         17  afterwards and this is proof to that.

         18                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON YASSKY:  Yes,

         19  thank you.

         20  Yes?

         21                 MR. ISRAEL:  On the 18" rule just a

         22  brief comment.  What happens many times is the

         23  sidewalk is swept and the curb is swept where there

         24  are no cars parked.  The homeowner leaves, the

         25  driver of the car parked in front of the house
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          2  drives away, the parking pattern along the sidewalk

          3  changes and now as the car pulls away to expose an

          4  area of litter that was really not visible or

          5  accessible by the homeowner and the homeowner is now

          6  responsible for a ticket.  I think that is another

          7  area of unfairness that should be addressed in this

          8  bill.

          9                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON YASSKY:  Thank

         10  you.  For our final panel we have Rick Duskiewicz

         11  from the New York Association of In- House

         12  Locksmiths and George McDonald from The Doe Fund.  I

         13  believe that is everyone who's here interested in

         14  testifying.  If there's anybody else -- Mr. Yorgin,

         15  please join the panel.  Thank you.  Why don't we

         16  hear first from Mr. Duskiewicz.

         17                 MR. DUSKIEWICZ:  Good afternoon,

         18  committee members.  My name is Rick Duskiewicz.  I'm

         19  the Secretary and Treasurer of the New York

         20  Association of In- House Locksmiths.  We are

         21  locksmiths that work in- house, in institutions,

         22  colleges, hospitals.  We do not work on the outside

         23  typically known as the retail commercial locksmiths.

         24                 As the main contact for the

         25  association, I am contacted on a regular basis by
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          2  residents, store owners who have found stickers on

          3  their front doors of their homes, their businesses.

          4  Many times they don't know what to do. They've

          5  called the Department of Sanitation and they've

          6  called NYPD.  They get no response.

          7                 There is a city agency that does

          8  license locksmiths in New York City, that's Consumer

          9  Affairs. Apparently they're powerless to stop these

         10  guys because they tell us they license locksmiths

         11  only, not the locksmith businesses.

         12                 I am the locksmith at Baruch College.

         13    While I do not represent Baruch College here, I

         14  see the damage done to our doors every single day.

         15  Two years ago we built a $319 million building on

         16  East 24th Street.  Within days after the

         17  construction fence came down our doors were

         18  permanently defaced by these stickers.  That's my

         19  tax dollars and your tax dollars being destroyed.

         20  Right now owners of private property have no

         21  recourse when they are hit with these stickers.  If

         22  you notice the pages that I gave you, these are

         23  printouts of a website that I started at the urging

         24  of several people.  Black and white photos do not do

         25  the damage justice.
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          2                 Currently, apparently this is

          3  happening so often and it's becoming worthwhile to

          4  these companies to do this, that gate companies are

          5  now getting into the act.  If you walk down any

          6  commercial strip I guarantee you that within a half

          7  a block you will find a dozen stickers, maybe two,

          8  three, four layers of these stickers.

          9                 I know Mr. Gennaro's area in Jamaica

         10  Estates has quite a few.  Mr. Weprin's area -- I

         11  happen to live within Mr. Weprin's area -- we get

         12  hit on Hillside Avenue

         13  and Union Turnpike.

         14                 The City Council and this Sanitation

         15  Committee have the power to stop these vandals.  I

         16  ask that you help preserve our quality of life and

         17  preserve the appearance of our front doors.  Please

         18  pass this legislation.  Thank you.

         19                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON YASSKY:  Thank you

         20  very much.  Mr. Yorgin.

         21                 MR. YORGIN:  Hi.  Good afternoon.

         22  Yes, I just wanted to ask for your support in this

         23  initiative.  For a couple of years now I've been

         24  working with a number of different people in my

         25  neighborhood in Chelsea to try to bring a stop to
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          2  these stickers.  In pursuing what we thought were

          3  the appropriate means to do that through the

          4  Department of Sanitation, the Department of Consumer

          5  Affairs and the police department, we've been

          6  running around in circles.  So this really -- this

          7  initiative is really to address these problems that

          8  have been going on for a very, very long time.

          9  So we'd just like to ask for your support in finally

         10  bringing an end to these sticker problems.

         11                 They really do just systematically

         12  deface our property and I'm not kidding when I say

         13  sometimes you'll see these stickers, they compete

         14  with one another.  They'll be stuck on top of one

         15  another and they do this repeatedly several times a

         16  week.  So we're just really looking for finally

         17  bringing this to an end.  Thank you very much.

         18                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON YASSKY:  Thank you

         19  for coming down and testifying.  Mr. McDonald.

         20                 MR. McDONALD:  I'm the President and

         21  founder of The Doe Fund.  We operate a program

         22  called Ready, Willing and Able that keeps large

         23  swaths of our city clean.  I'm here today as a

         24  private citizen and a homeowner.  I live at 232 East

         25  84th Street in Manhattan, between 2nd and 3rd.
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          2  You'll see, I gave you black and white copies of

          3  these, but it starts in April of 2001.  I started

          4  taking them off of the door and putting them on this

          5  paper with the idea that I would go to court and sue

          6  these people. But, you know, it's very, very

          7  difficult to find them and all of that stuff.  There

          8  are 75 stickers here in two years on my front door.

          9  Now, these are the ones that I could get off and put

         10  on the piece of paper.  You have to scrape them off.

         11  They build up the glue.  And once you see them, you

         12  never stop seeing them.  Everybody who works for me

         13  thinks, Councilman Felder, that I'm crazy because I

         14  go nuts over these things. How in the world these

         15  people can deface our private and public property

         16  like this and do it for all of these years, you're

         17  all to be commended.

         18                 There's just one more thing.  You

         19  know, they've been doing it for so long you ought to

         20  up the fines. You ought to make it really, really

         21  expensive for them.  The rebuttable presumption, now

         22  that's the key, because then you can go and get who

         23  it is.  And then we ought to really give it to them

         24  because they've been sticking it to us for all these

         25  years.  Let's stick them.  Thank you very much.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER FELDER:  On this bill,

          3  Council Member Brewer was the one who brought it to

          4  the Council and has been pushing for it.  She's

          5  unable to be here today because she was at other

          6  hearings.  But we know it's been an ongoing problem

          7  and we've had some difficulty in finding the

          8  appropriate area of the law where it could be

          9  enforced properly and legally and we found the

         10  graffiti law because it in essence is a form of

         11  graffiti of defacing.  So we think that's a good fit

         12  which will withstand any legal challenges and

         13  hopefully we're going to move this forward quickly.

         14  But Council Member Brewer was the main driving force

         15  of this and Councilman Avella from Queens.

         16                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON YASSKY:  Thank

         17  you.  I want to thank the whole panel.  Mr.

         18  McDonald, thank you for that very effective

         19  presentation.  It's a good thing you don't live in

         20  the 33rd Council District, I'd be worried. While

         21  you're here I should thank you.  I have directed

         22  some Council funds to The Doe Fund in my area on

         23  Court Street and you make an enormous difference

         24  there, I will tell you, not just in the life of the

         25  community, and so I commend you for this.
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          2                 I could not agree more with each and

          3  every one of you.  It really burns me up because

          4  you, I'm sorry, Mr. Duskiewicz, are in the position

          5  of being a law-abiding business, then having to

          6  compete with people that are out there doing

          7  something totally unethical and it should be

          8  illegal.  That we should never -- we always have to

          9  make sure that we don't put businesses trying to do

         10  the right thing in that kind of position because

         11  then that's really unfair.  So I support this

         12  wholeheartedly.  I know that my colleagues do as

         13  well.  I look forward to passing it and sticking it

         14  to them, as you say.

         15                 Mr. Yorgin, you want to have a final

         16  word?

         17                 MR. YORGIN:  Yes.  You might recall a

         18  couple of years ago Microsoft was fined after

         19  putting advertising stickers all over street signs

         20  and it was at that point I felt really motivated

         21  like I, as a property owner, could do something

         22  about it and that's when I found it really

         23  frustrating that as a property owner I had less

         24  rights protecting my personal property than the city

         25  did in protecting street signs.  I thought that was
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          2  just wrong.

          3                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON YASSKY:  Thank

          4  you.  And again, thank you to the panel for helping

          5  us build the record that will propel this

          6  legislation.

          7                 Before we close I want to again --

          8  I'm sorry, Mr. Duskiewicz, yes.

          9                 MR. DUSKIEWICZ:  I'm sorry.  We took

         10  an informal survey of locksmiths throughout the

         11  country on the internet and out of 191 responses 97%

         12  were against unauthorized stickering.

         13                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON YASSKY:  Right.

         14                 MR. DUSKIEWICZ:  They felt it was --

         15                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON YASSKY:  Right.

         16  The bulk of the business people are good folks and

         17  they want to do the right thing.  But then you put

         18  them in a position where to compete they have to do

         19  something harmful.  That's the worst.  So we better

         20  stop this now before everybody feels like if I'm

         21  going to stay in business I've got to put stickers

         22  over everybody's property.

         23                 Before we close, I just want to again

         24  commend Council Member Felder for bringing forward

         25  your bill which I think is going to be a great
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          2  service to our citizens.  It's our job to protect

          3  the quality of life and you're doing it. So thank

          4  you.  With that the hearing is adjourned.

          5                 (Hearing concluded at 2:47 p.m.)

          6

          7

          8

          9

         10

         11

         12

         13

         14

         15

         16

         17

         18

         19

         20

         21

         22

         23

         24

         25

                                                            88

          1

          2              CERTIFICATION

          3

          4

          5     STATE OF NEW YORK   )

          6     COUNTY OF NEW YORK  )

          7

          8

          9                 I, PAT IARKOWSKI, do hereby certify

         10  that the foregoing is a true and accurate transcript

         11  of the within proceeding.

         12                 I further certify that I am not

         13  related to any of the parties to this action by

         14  blood or marriage, and that I am in no way

         15  interested in the outcome of this matter.

         16                 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto

         17  set my hand this 20th day of November 2003.
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         23                          PAT IARKOWSKI
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          9            I, PAT IARKOWSKI, do hereby certify the

         10  aforesaid to be a true and accurate copy of the

         11  transcription of the audio tapes of this hearing.
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